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accounted for some of the best jobs the Poles enjoyed.
Many Poles worked at Swits Conde Mill, managed by a
Mr. Farrell; the Nottingham Mill, later known as the
Rayon Building, managed by the Whites; and a spinning
mill located on the East side between the canal and the
river. A lesser number found employment at other places
which included Kingsford Starch Factory, Kingsford Boiler
Shop & Foundry; the New York Central Repair Shops, Ames,
Fitzgibbons, Oil Well Supply Company, the Shade Cloth,
the Spring Works, the Toy Works, and the Machine Shop
located on West First Street, run by a Mr. Gray. In gen-
eral, the better jobs in the shops were seldom available
to the Poles. 18
A minor number of Poles resided in the Oswego area
prior to 1905. The 1870 census listed only two. In 1886,
according to "The History of St. Stephen's Church 1910-
1925, A History of the Polish,’ eight Poles were present
in the city. ‘These were: Lochowski, J. Michalski, P.
Michalski, F. Mrozinski, J. Jankowski, A. Smigielski,
W. Keszierski, J. Sobieski. It may be noted that several
of these men became the leaders of the Polish community.
The 1892 census lists the names of Joseph Smigielski, his
wife and three children, whileincluded in the City Directory
were the names of John Michalski, his wife and two children. 1
By 1905 there were estimated to be about 101 Poles in
Oswego. 20 The Oswego Daily Palladium of Feb. 3, 1908,
stated that ''there are at present 500 Poles resident of
this city and their number is on the increase.' This
seems to be a slight exaggeration. 21 gt, Stephen's Sub-
scription Book for 1912 contained the names of 316 Poles. 22
It has been estimated that by 1915 there were 1168 Poles
residing in Oswego. 23 Of this number 620 lived in the
Seventh Ward, 262 in the Fifth Ward, and 124 in the
Eighth Ward. 24 Although most of the Poles moved into
the Seventh Ward, this is not where the first settled. The
Michalski's. Kieliszewski's, Chodubski's, Kedzierski's
lived on the south side of East Oneida Street in the vicin-
ity of the present Pinarama. Immediately south on East
Albany Street, lived Peter Sieja. Quite a few of the Poles
settled in the Eighth Ward. These people came here
earlier than many who settled on the west side of the city.25
This sudden influx of large numbers of Poles into the
city of Oswego, especially in the Fifth and Seventh Wards,
created a startling but picturesque scene. The area where
they settled came to be known as ""Polack Hill" and is still
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time they had in the Enlisted Men's Barracks. An aver-
age peacetime garrison of seventy men, a company of

infantry or a battery of artillery, were quartered at Fort !
Ontario during most of the 19th century. :

The Magazine was the most important building in the
fort--this, of course, is where the main supply of pow-
der was kept. With walls four and one-half feet thick the
Magazine is the best built building at the post. Vertical
slits in the side walls allowed ventilation to enter the
main storage room as well as ar air space under the
wooden floor.

Two originally identical structures accommodated a
total of four officers, their families, and their servants.
Each officer whether married or single was assigned a
six-room apartment, a sharp contrast to the crowded
living facilities for enlisted personnel. Both Officers’
Quarters originally were flanked by two one-story frame
outhouse and fuel storage structures.

The Post Headquarters held a guardroom, prison 1
rooms, a small cell block, the post quartermaster’s
office and supply room, and until 1868 the commandant's
and adjutant's office. This was the administrative and
operational center of life within the fort.

Behind the walls of Fort Ontario's bastions are under-
ground artillery and rifle emplacements called casemates.
Installation of the casemates was begun in 1863; however,
because work was suspended in the 1870's only five of
the intended ten casemates were completed. Each artil-
lery casemate was equipped with its own service maga-
zine to eliminate the need of bringing powder all the way
from the main magazine. Despite local legend apparent-
ly originating in the early 1900's the casemates never
were intended or used as dungeons,

Fire from the casemates was to be directed into the
ditch or dry moat that originally surrounded the fort.
Confronted with the vertical scarp facing also begun in
1863, enemy infantry would have been subject to severe :
cross-fire from the casemates and the parapets above :
while attempting to scale the main works. t

Located outside the fortified area, a small surviving
stone building was built in 1821 by the Treasury Depart- :
ment for the keeper of the Oswego light. It was acquired 4
by the War Department in 1841 and was used until 1868
as the post hospital. Other service buildings--including
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GREATEST AND LEAST MONTHLY PRECIPITATION
Beginning in 1871

Greatest Least
January 6.49 in 1884 January 0.60 in 1921
February 5.02 in 1910 February 0.22 in 1877
March 5.61 in 1936 March 0.48 in 1885
April 6.21 in 1969* April 0.61 in 1915
May 7.47 in 1931 May 0.18 in 1920
June 9.81 in 1889 June 0.12 in 1955
July 7.62 in 1874 July 0.54 in 1960
August 6.47 in 1893 August 0.29 in 1874
September 7.04 in 1925 September 0.76 in 1881
October 10. 10 in 1955 October 0.18 in 1924
November  8.97 in 1927 November  0.45 in 1904
December 10.57 in 1878 December 1.02 in 1876 and
1917

* 5,64 in 1954 at Ellen Street
5.69 in 1969 at E. Mohawk St.

GREATEST AND LEASTVMONTHLY SNOWFALL
Beginning in 1884

Greatest Least
January 67.0 in 1966 Jamary 3.91in 1921
February 58.3 in 1968* February 3.0 1in 1886

March 47.4 in 1947 March Trace in 1898
April 11.2 in 1904 April - Always a trace or more
May 1.0 in 1907 May 0.0

June None June 0.0

July None July 0.0

August None August 0.0

September 0.1 in 1899 September 0.0

October 10.3 in 1895 October 0.0

November 34.3 in 1886 November 0.5 in 1913
December  85.5 in 1958 December 1.6 in 1891

Wettest year 55.83 in 1878
Driest year 23.41 in 1887
*Unofficial record at Ellen St.

January 6, 1969
Elmer Loveridge
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As time went on, passenger trains began to vanish from
the scene, one by one, until there remained but one train
a day each way between Rochester and Oswego and Roch-
ester and Suspension Bridge. Soon these were discontinued
as passenger trains and became mixed trains, in which
passengers, if in no hurry, could eventually reach their
destination. (The last passenger run was made on April 1,
1932.) On Feb. 2, 1935, the mixed trains remaining made
their last runs, brmgmg such service to an end, except for
an occasional ra11road fan excursion.

Today, the "West Hojack," as it is called, is little
more than a weed-grown almost forgotten branch line of
the mighty Penn-Central but one-way freight a few times
a week groans its way westward to Charlotte past boarded
up depots with their attendant memories of better days.

Passenger service between Oswego and Syracuse on
the New York Central was discontinued April 6, 1951, and
after abandonment of the New York, Ontario & Western
Railroad in 1957, the Central purchased the Fulton-to-
Oswego segment, and rebuilt it.

The Oswego branch, commencing at Woodard near
Liverpool, still enjoys a thriving freight business; its
prime customers being Sealright and Nestle Chocolate Co.
in Fulton, the Port Authority and the Niagara-Mohawk
Power Corp. in Oswego, as well as Armstrong Cork Co.
north of Fulton.

"The Oswego & Rome Railroad"”

In the days when railroads promised great wealth to
communities, a line was projected eastward from Oswego
to connect with the Rome, Watertown & Ogdensburgh at
Pulaski. This line, known as the "Oswego & Rome Rail-
road, ' was opened between those two points on Jan. 1, 1866.

The company that built it was incorporated April 11,
1863, and on September Tth of that year was leased in per-
petuity to the R W & O, which subsequently bought a major-
ity of the stock.

Elizabeth M. Simpson, in her book, Mexico Mother of
Towns, wrote:

"The question locally was whether the road should take
the lake shore or the inland route. The former would run
through Texas and the latter nearer to Mexico village. One
hundred and twenty-five thousand dollars worth of bonds
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